
 
 

SCRUTINY : REGENERATION AND 
PUBLIC PROTECTION MEETING 

 
2.30 pm TUESDAY, 16TH JULY, 2019 

 

COUNCIL CHAMBER 
 

A Pre-Meeting will take place in Conference Room 1 at 2.00 pm.   
This Meeting is for Committee Members only  

 
 

Please note that today’s Meeting will be recorded.  
  

This recording will not be broadcast on the Authority’s internet as it will only be used for 
training purposes by the Democratic Services Department. 

 
The Public Seating areas will be in view of the Camera and, by entering the Chamber and using 

the Public Seating Area, Members of the Public are consenting to being filmed and to the 
possible use of those images and sound recordings as outlined above.   

 

 
 

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on (01685) 

725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 
 

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be 
found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers. 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations)  

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 
Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 

 

3. CCTV - Future Provision   

 To consider report of the Chief Officer Community 
Regeneration 
 

5 - 10 

4. Anti-Social Behaviour   

 To consider report of the Chief Officer Community 
Regeneration 
 

11 - 16 

5. Work Programme 2019-2020   

 To consider the attached report 
 

17 - 28 

6. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow Up 
Actions  

 

7. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting   

 To receive an update from the Chair 
 

 

8. Any Other Business deemed urgent by the Chair   
 
 
 
 
 
 



  
COMPOSITION: Councillors:  J Amos (Chair) 

                     C J Barry (Vice-Chair) 
  
 Councillors: M Colbran, L Davies, G Lewis and 

S Thomas 
 
Co-optee(s): H Hopkins, H Jackson, H Powell and 
M Ellis 

  
together with appropriate officers 
 

 
 

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

CCTV – Future Provision 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The Regeneration and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee Members would like a  
           report outlining any proposed changes to the way in which the CCTV will work.  The 

Committee also expects some detail on how the Council plans to use the system to 
generate intelligence that will strengthen the Council’s performance not only in 
community safety-related work but also in the broader sense. 

 
1.2 In April 2019 the CCTV service was relocated to Public Protection to sit within the  
           Community Safety Team. The CCTV Control Manager left the Authority under the 

VER process and responsibility for day to day management of CCTV was 
incorporated within the current role of the Community Safety Team Leader. 

 
1.3 Partners such as the Police, town centre businesses and our late night economy 

venues have identified the CCTV service as core in preventing crime and disorder and 
contribute to the fulfilment of the Authorities Statutory Duties under the Crime and 
Disorder Act. 

 
1.4 Over the past twelve months a review of the CCTV service has been undertaken and 

a programme of changes to modernise the service are proposed. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 Scrutiny Committee to receive this report and consider its content. 

 
2.2 Scrutiny Committee to offer any recommendations/feedback/observations to support  

the officers with future planning (where appropriate) 
 

Date Written 2nd July 2019 

Report Author Paul Lewis 

Service Area Regeneration and Public 
Protection 

Committee Date 16th July 2019 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Regeneration and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee Members requested a 

report outlining any proposed changes to the way in which the CCTV will work.  The 
Committee also expects some detail on how the Council plans to use the system to 
generate intelligence that will strengthen the Council’s performance not only in 
community safety-related work but also in the broader sense 

 
3.2 In April 2019 CCTV was moved within the Public Protection Service to sit within the 

Community Service Team. The previous Control Room Manager took VER and the 
current Community Safety Team Leader took on the day to day responsibility for the 
running of CCTV. 

 

3.3 Partners such as the Police, town centre businesses and our late night economy 
venues have identified the CCTV service as core in preventing crime and disorder. 
Our provision of contributes to the fulfilment of the Authorities Statutory Duties under 
the Crime and Disorder Act. 

 

3.4 The proposed new bus station and town centre transformation project plus the 
increase in late night economy activity with new premises opening and popular 
festivals demand a fit for purpose modern CCTV system.  

 
3.5 Over the past twelve months a review of CCTV has been undertaken with our key 

partners at South Wales Police. The purpose of the review was to assess current 
provision, benchmark against other Authorities provision and modernise the service 
under the backdrop of Austerity. 

 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1 CCTV Provision in Merthyr Tydfil is provided from the control room at the Civic Centre. 

A total of 83 cameras are located across the County Borough. A map of current 
camera placements is produced in appendix 1. 

 
4.2 There are 3 part time operators currently employed with two casual relief staff. 

Manned coverage is provided as follows: 
 

Mon – Thu 9am – 11pm 
 
Fri-Sat 9am – 4pm   and   6pm – 1am 
 
Sunday  No cover. 

 
4.3 The majority of existing cameras are analogue and have not been upgraded for a 

number of years. The control room technology is also analogue. Of the 84 cameras 17 
are currently out of use and a further 19 with visibility issues. The Authority has a 
maintenance contract in place however due to the age of the current equipment 
replacement parts have become obsolete and breakdown of equipment can lead to 
delays in provision of service. 

 
4.4 South Wales Police were the predominant users of the CCTV Service. 
 

Page 6



4.5 Funding of the service was met from our Revenue Support Grant plus a contribution of 
£11,352 from Merthyr Valley Homes as part of a Service Level Agreement. The CCTV 
budget for 18/19 was £175,325. 

 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1 Key actions have been identified and a 3 stage approach to service improvement: 
 

Stage 1 
 

Modernisation of the Control room to a new digital platform. Capital spending has 
been secured and improvements to the control room infrastructure are taking place 
over the summer.  

 
Stage 2 

 
Shift rotas. Feedback from partners suggested that our shift rotas were not meeting 
key demands. A review of rotas has been conducted and a new rota, subject to staff 
and union consultation, has been proposed. The times proposed are: 

 
Monday – Weds 9am – 9pm 
Thursday  10am – 4pm 
Fri – Sat  9am – 3am 
Sunday  6pm – midnight. 

 
Consultation with Unions and Staff are currently taking place. 

 
Stage 3 

 
Review of cameras and placement. Working with Police partners we are reviewing 
current camera locations and their current fitness for purpose. The Protection of 
Freedoms Act requires public bodies to consider the impact of CCTV on an 
individual’s Human Rights. As part of the review a privacy impact assessment will be 
made assessing the need for a camera in a location. 

 
As part of this review we need to look at replacing existing camera stock with new 
modern digital cameras and possibly reducing number of cameras in operation. 
Capital funding would need to be sought to pay for any upgrade. 

 
5.2 Unfortunately we were advised in March that Merthyr Valley Homes were withdrawing 

their existing funding and the required notice was given. All costs relating to CCTV are 
now met via our Revenue Support Grant. A priority action moving forward will be to 
look at external funding opportunities. 

 
5.3 Internal meetings have been taking place with other service areas with a view to better 

utilisation of our CCTV resource. Initial meetings with waste services and fly tipping 
enforcement officers have identified potential opportunities. 

 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1 We aim for our CCTV Service to be a modern resilient service meeting the needs of 

partners in tackling crime and disorder in Merthyr Tydfil. 
Page 7



6.2 We want to embed the CCTV service into core business of all our front line 
enforcement services. 

 

6.3 We want our CCTV service to be the lead on all camera related surveillance activities 
ensuring best use of overt and covert techniques and equipment.  

 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1 Continue our progress on Service delivery modernisation. 
 
7.2 Secure capital funding to upgrade existing camera stock. 
 
7.3 Develop our CCTV to be the eyes and ears of all Council Services and not just seen 

as a tool for Police. 
 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 

8.1 The CCTV Service contributes to the wellbeing goals and Sustainable Development 
Priorities.  

 

 
Alyn Owen, Chief Officer Community 
Regeneration and Public Protection 

Councillor Geraint Thomas, Portfolio 
member for Regeneration and Public 

Protection.  
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

CCTV Map 
 
 

- Attached 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 8



!
!!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!
!
!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!
!!

!
!

!!

!
!

!!
!

!!

!

!

9
8

7 6

5

4
21

3

49
47

43
42 41

40
39

38 37

36

35

34
33

32

31
30

25

21

2619

14

73

70

69

66

63

62

52

58

57

60

59
56

55

54

53

51

48

50

2928

27

24

20

18
16

13

15

12
11

23

22

10

¯ Merth yr Tydfil CCTV Cam era Locations

DATE:SCALE:

1:7,500
© Crown copyrig h t and database rig h ts 2016

Ordnance S u rvey 100025302
“You  are not perm itted to copy, su b-licence, distribu te or sell any

 of th is data to th ird parties in any form .”

TITLE:

© Hawlfraint y Goron a h awliau  cronfa ddata 2016
 Arolwg Ordnans 100025302

“Ni ch aniateir i ch wi g opio, tan-drwyddedu , dosbarth u  neu  
werth u  y data yma i  u nrh yw drydydd barti m ewn u nrh yw ffu rf”11/04/2016

DEPT:

Planning

Num Location
1Lower Hig h  S treet / fou ntain
2Town Gillar S treet
3Town Gillar S treet Car Park
4 S wan S treet Town
5Town Hig h  S treet
6Town Graham  Way
7Market squ are
8Victoria S treet
9Glebeland S treet
10Castle S treet
11Upper Hig h  S treet opposiite Red Hou se
12Upper Hig h  S treet
13Upper Hig h  S treet Morlias Bu ilding s
14Top pontm orlais
15Joh n S treet
16Civc Centre Car park
18Town Middle Car Park
19Castle carpark
20Colu m n College end Penry S T
21College carpark fire station end
22Footbridge end college carpark
23Lower end extention college car park
24Top end extentsion college car park
25Taff Trail
26Zoar chapel
27Taff Trail police station
28Bu s S tation
29Bu s S tation
30Taff Trail
31Rear EE
32PCH Maternity
33PCH Main Entrance
34PCH Main Entrance
35PCH Maternity Carpark
36PCH Grou nds
37PCH
38PCH
39Cyfarth fa S ch ool
40Cyfarth fa S ch ool Avenue
41Pen y Dre Gym
42Pen Y Dre car park
43Pen Y dre
47Gu rnos
48Gu rnos S ocial Club
49Gu rnos Alder Close
50Gu rnos Chessnu t Way S h ops
51Gu rnos top of Gu rnos Road
52Gu rnos Goitre Lane opposite Pen Y Dre
53Gu rnos Goitre Lane Playg rou nd
54Galon Uchaf Opposite Trading  Post
55 S wansea Road - Landsbuy Road
56S wanse Road - S h ops Heol Tai Mawr Way
57Gu rnos Rear of Penydre S ch ool
58Gu rnos Rou ndabou t Top Lakeside Gardens
59Penydarren Talbot S qu are
60Londis S h op Hayden Terrace
61Pant- Pant Road
62Gu rnos S ycam ore Road / Goitre Lane
63Galon Uchaf Rou ndabou t
64Pant Heol rhyd Y Bedd
65Pant - Corner of Pant Cemetery
66Pant Merth yr Motor Auction
69Joh n S T/ Ch u rch S T
70Civic Centre Basement Carpark
72Trelewis car park
73Mu lti S tory Carpark
87Treharris Library Perrtt S treet
88Cardiff Road
89Treharris Fox S treet
90Treharris Bu s S tation

P
age 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Anti-Social Behaviour 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The Regeneration and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee Members would forward 

a report which will offer them an overview of the current status in relation to anti-social 
behaviour and its impact on residents of and visitors to Merthyr Tydfil County Borough.  
The report should contain the latest available data on a local and national level in 
relation to this topic.  Members would welcome an update on the current funding 
situation re: this; as well as an overview of partnership arrangements supporting 
delivery of activity addressing this issue. 

 
1.2 Merthyr Tydfil Community Safety Team within the Community Safety Partnership and 

carry out work in conjunction with South Wales Police and other Partners in tackling 
Anti-Social Behaviour within the County Borough. 

 
1.3 The report identifies that Anti-social Behaviour reports overall across the Northern 

Business Command Unit (Merthyr Tydfil, Rhondda, Taf and Cynon) has decreased by 
6% in the past year. 

 
1.4 Of the four Northern areas Rhondda has the highest reports accounting for 29% of 

reported ASB and Merthyr Tydfil the lowest with 21% of reported ASB. 
 
1.5 In the top ten beats for all ASB occurrences Merthyr Tydfil Town centre is the second 

highest ASB hotspot beat area in Northern Division, Cyfarthfa was 5th and Gurnos 8th. 
Aberdare Town Centre being the highest. 

 
1.6 Rough Sleeper ASB accounted for 3% of the total reported ASB in Northern Division 

with Merthyr Tydfil having the highest number of rough sleeper ASB complaints. 
 

Date Written 4th July 2019 

Report Author Paul Lewis  

Service Area Regeneration and Public 
Protection 

Committee Date 16th July 2019 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 Scrutiny Committee to receive this report and consider its content. 
 
2.2 Scrutiny Committee to offer any recommendations/feedback/observations to support 

the officers with future planning (where appropriate) 
 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Regeneration and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee Members requested a 

report which will offer them an overview of the current status in relation to anti-social 
behaviour and its impact on residents of and visitors to Merthyr Tydfil County Borough.  
The report should contain the latest available data on a local and national level in 
relation to this topic.  Members would welcome an update on the current funding 
situation re: this; as well as an overview of partnership arrangements supporting 
delivery of activity addressing this issue. 

 
3.2 South Wales Police Force and Organised Crime Unit have produced analytical data 

over the past twelve months for the Northern Division Business Command Unit of 
South Wales Police. 

 

3.3 The report identifies that across the whole Northern Division (Merthyr Tydfil, Rhondda, 
Cynon and Taf) Merthyr Tydfil has lowest percentage of reported Anti-Social 
Behaviour (21%) with Rhondda highest (29%). There has been an overall reduction in 
ASB across Northern Division of 6% when compared to the previous year. (6858 
reports 18/19 compared to 7284 reports 17/18) 

 

3.4 The top Themes for ASB were: 
 

 Neighbour Issues (30%) 

 Youth Related ASB (22.8%) 

 Threats/Disturbances (8.5%) 

 Vehicle Issues (7.8%)  

 Drug Use (6.6%) 

 Off Road Bikes (5.5%) 

 Causing Nuisance (3.4%) 

 Rough Sleepers/Vagrants (3%) 
 
3.5 Across all themes Merthyr Tydfil had the lowest reports in Northern Division with the 

exception of Drug related (2nd highest) Off Road Bikes (1st) Rough Sleeping/Vagrancy 
(1st). 

 
3.6 In the top ten beat areas for ASB Merthyr Tydfil Town Centre Beat is ranked 2nd, 

Cyfarthfa Beat 5th and Gurnos 8th. Aberdare Town Centre was ranked highest. 
 

3.7 Merthyr Town Centre was also ranked 2nd highest beat for assault with injury again 
behind Aberdare Town Centre. 

 

Page 12



3.8 In tackling Anti-Social Behaviour Merthyr Tydfil Community Safety team use a four 
stage approach when dealing with perpetrators: 

 

 

  
 

 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1 Merthyr Tydfil’s Community Safety Team previously sat alongside the Housing Section 

at Merthyr Tydfil CBC. The team consisted of a Team Leader, a Community Safety 
Officer and a grant funded Community Cohesion Officer covering Cwm Taf. 

 
4.2 ASB related issue were discussed at Quality of Life Meetings where Senior Officers 

from across a range of agencies would discuss ASB related matters and plans of 
actions. These meetings were held on a Northern footprint. 

 
4.3 Engagement with South Wales Police was hampered by continual change of 

Inspectors within the Merthyr Tydfil area. 
 

4.4 There was a perception of under reporting of ASB and public mistrust in the 101 
system. 

 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1 In July 2018 the Community Safety Team were moved to the Public Protection team 

sitting alongside the Trading Standards and Licensing Teams. Funding is received for 
our on ASB work from the South Wales Police Crime Commissioner at an amount of 
£41,200. This amount is used to contribute toward the team leader post costs plus a 
small amount toward projects. Net spend by the Authority is £35,960. 

 
5.2 In tackling ASB the team currently only has the Community Safety Team Leader. The 

Community Safety Officer post was lost as part of the efficiencies savings. The 
Community Safety Team leader also has day to day responsibility for CCTV. We are 
shortly to recruit a part time officer to assist the team leader with referral inputs.  

Page 13



 

5.3 Although Merthyr Tydfil figures were low compared to neighbouring areas there was 
still a concern that there was underreporting. Attendances at PACT meetings were 
undertaken and the message re-emphasised that ASB needed to be recorded via the 
101 system. The 101 process allows partners to allocate resources on an intelligence 
led basis. 

 

Structure / process –  
Reporting ASB to 101 is vitally important. Not only so there is a true record of ASB 
level but also because it feeds into a process and feeds referrals pathways 

 

 
5.4 Following a review the Quality Of Life meetings an alternative model has been put in 

place with a localised Problem Solving Group made up of Community Safety Partners. 
Meetings are held at a local divisional area and are chaired by the local Police 
Inspector. Data is produced allowing the group to concentrate on top offenders, 
victims and hotspot locations. 

 
5.5 Since relocation of Community Safety to Public protection there has been joint working 

with Trading Standards and by utilising ASB powers a closure notice was obtained on 
a premise that was selling Psychoactive Substances. 

 

5.6 Falling from intelligence analysis at the Problem Solving Group we have worked with 
registered social landlords and have used ASB powers to obtain and serve a premise 
closure order on a domestic premise that was causing considerable community 
issues. 

 

5.7 With the introduction of CCTV service to the Public Protection portfolio we can now 
utilise a range of services to target ASB in Merthyr Tydfil. 

 

5.8 The issues regarding the Police turnover have been resolved and closer working with 
officers has been taking place raising the issue of reporting and importance of 
response officers submitting referrals for action. Already we have seen an increase in 
the number of referrals however with limited resource we have to prioritise actions. 

 

Page 14



Most recent ASB figures 
 

 May 2018 June 2018 July 2018 Aug 2018 Sept 2018 Oct 2018 Nov 2018 

Merthyr 49 40 26 42 11 48 36 

Cynon 58 68 76 65 52 79 43 

Taff 25 68 71 36 50 90 65 

Rhondda 46 71 98 95 101 140 136 

 Dec 2018 Jan 2019 Feb 2019 Mar 2019 Apr 2019 May 2019 June 2019 

Merthyr 47 94 43 28 47 60 88 

Cynon 40 73 29 37 62 66 76 

Taff 60 60 41 88 105 60 112 

Rhondda 106 74 101 97 124 79 103 

 
5.9 Outcome in how we deal with referrals the latest figures are as follow: 

 

ASB STAGES 

  
STAGE 1 
NOTICES  

 
STAGE 2 
NOTICES 

 
STAGE 3 
(abc,CPNW) 

 
STAGE 4  
(CPN, 
INJ,CBO 

 
HOTSPOT 
/INTEL 

 
PSPO 
BREACH 

 
YOUTH 
RELATED 

 

JUNE 12 2   20  9  

JULY 4 3 2  5  5  

AUG 11 1   12 3 8  

SEPT 12  1  10  7  

OCT 15 8 2 1 10  23  

NOV 15 8 1  10  28  

DEC 21 5 3  15  24  

JAN 19 6 13 9 21  37  

FEB 2 1  4 3  5  

MARCH 5 4 1 1 2  12  

APR 18 3 4 2   10  

 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1 We aim to utilise the whole portfolio of Public Protection Services to tackle Anti-Social 

Behaviour. The review of CCTV services, the development of a Late Night Economy 

Page 15



Plan and policing of licensed premises and infrastructure changes in the town centre 
such as the new bus station will give us the opportunity to tackle ASB. 

 
6.2 By working with partners and adopting an intelligence led, smarter approach to 

enforcement we are confident we can still make an impact and make Merthyr Tydfil a 
safer place. 

 
6.3 Ongoing Austerity remains a threat in tackling community safety issues.  Services 

across the Public protection portfolio in Merthyr Tydfil have seen a reduction in staff 
numbers and resources with budget reductions of up to 50%.   

 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1 Continue to promote the reporting systems for ASB issues which enable to deploy 

limited resources effectively. 
 
7.2 Work smarter with partners in tackling ASB issues and utilising our powers 

effectively. 
 
7.3 Work with the Police on partnership operations ensuring the tools afforded under 

ASB legislation are fully utilised. 
 
7.4 Develop our CCTV to be the eyes and ears of all Council Services and not just seen 

as a tool for Police. 
 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 

8.1 Community Safety contributes to the wellbeing goals and Sustainable Development 
Priorities.  

 

 
Alyn Owen, Chief Officer Community 
Regeneration and Public Protection 

Councillor Geraint Thomas, Portfolio 
member for Regeneration and Public 

Protection.  
 
 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

South Wales Police 
analytical report. 
RESTRICTED 

 
 

May 2019 Community Safety Team 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 

 
Page 16



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY REPORT 
 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Work Programme 2019/20  
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with its work programme for consideration and to 
prepare in advance of the next scrutiny committee meeting. 

 
1.2 To remind Scrutiny Committee members that they need to consider the requirements 

of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 in all aspects of scrutiny 
work. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

2.1 The Committee considers the attached Work Programme and approves, revises or 
amends it as deemed appropriate; and to consider the questions at 3.7 in planning 
for the next meeting.  

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The attached work programme identifies the topics and issues under consideration 
by the Scrutiny Committee and allows an opportunity for additional subjects to be 
identified and included on the programme. 

 
3.2 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 

their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda.  

 
3.3 The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires each Public Service 

Board (PSB) and Council to work with their communities to develop local objectives. 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC) and the Cwm Taf PSB have acted 
on this. 

Date Written 26th June 2019 

Report Author Scrutiny Section 

Committee Division Scrutiny  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 16th July 2019 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



 
3.4 MTCBC has four local Wellbeing Objectives, each having clear outcomes that will 

help the Council to respond to local community needs and contribute to the seven 
national wellbeing goals. The four Wellbeing Objectives are:- 

 
 

BS Best Start to Life - Children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals.  
 
The key outcomes for Best Start to Life are: 
 

 Children live in a nurturing and stimulating home environment  

 Children have access to high quality pre-school and school education  

 Improve the educational outcomes for all children and young people  

 Children and young people have good health and wellbeing 
 
 

WL Working Life - People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the 
needs of businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure which makes Merthyr 
Tydfil as an attractive destination.  
 
The key outcomes for Working Life are:  
 

 Merthyr Tydfil realises its full economic potential, with a skilled workforce and 
better employment opportunities; 

 People value and enjoy the built and natural environment, protecting and 
enhancing our cultural assets for current and future generations;  

 We have strong, resilient and supportive communities where people take 
responsibility for their own actions and how they affect others.  

 
 

EW Environmental Wellbeing - Communities protect, enhance and promote our 
environment and countryside.  
 
 The key outcomes for Environmental Wellbeing are:  
 

 Environmental damage is minimised by preventing pollution 

 To maximise the amount of materials and resources recycled in line with the 
waste hierarchy; 

 Merthyr Tydfil has good quality, biodiverse and connected green infrastructure 
and open spaces; and 

 The use of renewable and low carbon energy is increased.  
 

LW Living Well - People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health.  
 
The key outcomes for Living Well are: 
 

 People live safe and independent lives within their communities 

 Children and adults are safeguarded from harm and feel safe 

 Children and young people live safely with their family or close to home and 
have transitioned well into adulthood. 

 

 

Page 18



3.5 The Scrutiny Committee is encouraged to identify issues that reflect these priorities 
that are within your remit and/or are a priority for local people and communities. If a 
matter is a recurring issue for the people you, as Councillors, represent, the 
likelihood is that it is something that the Committee should consider. The more 
relevant the issue is to local communities then the greater the likelihood of engaging 
those communities in the scrutiny process and of producing outcomes that will be 
visible to those communities you represent. 

 
3.6 MTCBC has developed an ‘Our Shared Vision’ document (Appendix I). This makes 

the connections from the seven national Wellbeing Goals through to the local 
objectives and political priorities. This document is contained within one page and 
acts as an easy to understand guide. When considered with service area strategies 
and operational plans a thread is created that can be extended down to individual 
tasks. This helps staff members see how they are contributing to the Act and the 
‘Wales We Want’, and will assist Scrutiny members better understand the 
connections with the Act. 

 
3.7 The work programme is a dynamic document and is reviewed at every meeting of 

the Committee to ensure that its contents are still relevant and will add value to what 
the Council and partners are doing. At each meeting the committee will agree the 
agenda items for their next meeting and in preparation may in advance wish to ask 
itself the following questions. 
 

Q) Why has the item been placed on a Scrutiny Work Programme? 

a. Does this item/topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s wellbeing 
objectives and priorities? 

b. Is this item/topic relating to service performance concerns? 
c. Is this item/topic of significant public interest? 
d. Has the item/topic got budgetary implications? 
e. Is this a item/topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 

difference and achieve tangible outcomes? 
f. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 

resources? 
 
Q) What is the specific role of the Committee? 

            This will depend on the item – for example the role could be: 
a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 

department; 
 b.  to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose; 

 c.  to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 
major issue; 

d.  to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 
investigation / review; 

e. to explore possible solutions to an issue. 
 

Q) What outcome is the Committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item? 

a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council  

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes. 

Page 19



c. To receive an overview presentation. 
d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy / strategy 
e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 

pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work.  

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the wellbeing objectives / other plan / other strategy. 

g. Improvement in service delivery 
 

Q) What information does the Committee need to fulfil this role / achieve 
this outcome?  

What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas / 
solutions. 

 

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information? 

Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police, Strategic Partners etc 

 

Q) Does the Committee need to ask for written representations? 

The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate / Cabinet 
Member / External Partner etc prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the Committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending ensure that they have the information / answer 
ready for the meeting.  

 

Q) Which meeting format / venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend? 

 Meetings do not have to be held in a formal committee room environment. 
You may wish to hold occasional meetings out in the community e.g. 
community centres, sports facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some 
people find the formal setting intimidating. Site visits for example may be more 
appropriate to see first-hand what the committee is investigating / obtaining 
information on e.g. waste sites, regeneration projects etc. 

 
Q) Method of Scrutiny? 

 Once Members have identified the matters they wish to scrutinise, 
consideration should be given to scoping the subject in more detail including 
the timing and method of scrutiny to be used. Support in this process will be 
given by the Scrutiny and Support Manager and Officer. Members may wish 
to: 

a. Consider an item at a single meeting; 

b. Consider an item over a series of meetings; 

c. Allocate the work to a small working group of Members (Task & Finish group) 
to investigate the issue over a period of 2-3 months (this may involve visits to 
see how services are working in practice); 

d. Undertake an Inquiry Day (or days); 

e. Undertake joint scrutiny with members of another Scrutiny Committee; 

Page 20



f. Invite expert witnesses to give their views; 

g. Seeking the views of service users/carers and/or the general public (public 
calls for evidence). 

 
 
 
Performance and Scrutiny Department 
MTCBC 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Statement of Wellbeing 
& Focus on the Future: 
Wellbeing in our 
Community 

4th April 2018 MTCBC Website 
 
Full Council 4th April 2018  
 
 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/g2694/Public%20reports%20pack%2004th-Apr-2018%2017.30%20Full%20Council.pdf?T=10&LLL=0


 

 

APPENDIX I 

Page 22



Regeneration and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

 
 

 
  

Date / Timing Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet Member  Scrutiny Focus  

4th June 2019 

Draft Committee Work 

Programme 2018/19 

 

Cllr Julian Amos (Chair) and 

Scrutiny Committee 

Members 

The Committee to discuss the draft Work Programme and make any required adjustments 

to this in order to agree its content and sign off the Work Programme for 2019-2020. 

Cyfarthfa Heritage Area Councillor Geraint Thomas/ 
Alyn Owen / Chris :Long/ 
Zoe Thomas 

Scrutiny and Challenge: -  Following the update report received by the Committee in July 
2018; a subsequent report has been requested on recent developments linked to the 
Cyfarthfa Heritage Area.  The report should contain details on the governance activities 
supporting delivery of this activity for the Committee to scrutinise.  It should also 
demonstrate how the area will feature as part of the Design Council for Wales’ Crucible 
Report. 
 

16th July 2019 

Refocus of the CCTV service 
area 

Councillor Geraint Thomas/ 
Alyn Owen / Paul Lewis / 
Ryan Evans 

Scrutiny and Challenge:-  Following the management of the CCTV service being transferred 
to the Community Safety and Regulatory Compliance Manager’s service area; Committee 
Members would like a report outlining any proposed changes to the way in which the CCTV 
will work.  The Committee also expects some detail on how the Council plans to use the 
system to generate intelligence that will strengthen the Council’s performance not only in 
community safety-related work but also in the broader sense. 
 

Anti-social Behaviour Councillor Geraint Thomas/ 
Alyn Owen / Paul Lewis / 
Ryan Evans 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Committee requests officers bring forward a report which will 
offer them an overview of the current status in relation to anti-social behaviour and its 
impact on residents of and visitors to Merthyr Tydfil County Borough.  The report should 
contain the latest available data  on a local and national level in relation to this topic.  
Members would welcome an update on the current funding situation re: this; as well as an 
overview of partnership arrangements supporting delivery of activity addressing this issue. 

Work Programme Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Committee will review the items due to be presented at the 
next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are 
available to report authors who will be drafting the report. 
 

P
age 23



Regeneration and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

 

  

Date / Timing Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet Member  Scrutiny Focus  

16th September 
2019 

Self-Evaluation Findings: 
Question 1: Outcomes 
 

Cllr Geraint Thomas / Alyn 
Owen / Chris Long  / Paul 
Lewis 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Made up of 3 key questions the re-focused self-evaluation process 
supports Chief Officers and service teams to reflect on what they achieved and identify and 
set priorities for improvement.  The Committee will receive the service’s response to the 
first of the key questions which is linked to Outcomes.  They will be required to scrutinise 
the proforma outlining the findings of the process (along with relevant supporting 
evidence); and review the validity of the judgment ascribed.   
 

Destination Development Cllr Geraint Thomas / Alyn 
Owen / Chris Long  / Ryan 
Barry 

Scrutiny and Challenge:   The Scrutiny Committee will receive a report on the progress 
made linked to the work undertaken by the Council linked to ongoing Destination 
Development activity.  The Committee will scrutinise the report to identify progress made 
to date; explore the impact of these activities on the ecomony; and the opportunities 
these activities make on jobs/careers and training and skills development  

Committee Work 

Programme 2019/2020 

 

Cllr Julian Amos (Chair) and 

Scrutiny Committee 

Members 

The Committee to discuss the draft Work Programme and make any required adjustments 

to this in order to agree its content and sign off the Work Programme for 2019-2020. 

 

14th October 
2019 

Cwm Taf Youth Offending 
Service (YOS) 

Councillor Geraint Thomas/ 
Alyn Owen/ Paul Lewis / 
Lyndon Lewis (Cwm Taf 
YOS) 

Scrutiny and Challenge:   Following an update received by the Committee in April 2019; 
members requested a report be received detailing the work being undertaken by the Youth 
Offending Service within Merthyr Tydfil.   The Committee expects most up-to-date data to 
be included; and that this information is put into the context of the key interventions being 
delivered by Cwm Taf YOS; and the impact of these. 
 

Substance Misuse Councillor Geraint Thomas/ 
Alyn Owen/Paul Lewis / Ceri 

Ford (RCT CBC) 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Following an update received by the Committee in April 2019; 
members requested a report be received focusing on the specific situation in relation to 
Merthyr Tydfil regarding substance misuse.  The Committee expects the most up-to-date 
information for the County Borough to be included; and that this information covers the use 
of both alcohol and illegal substances.  The report should also offer an outline of the key 
interventions being delivered and the impact of these. 
 

Work Programme Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Committee will review the items due to be presented at the 
next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are 
available to report authors who will be drafting the report. 
 

P
age 24



Regeneration and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

 

 

Date / Timing Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet Member  Scrutiny Focus  

2nd December 
2019 

Self-Evaluation Findings: 
Question 2: Service Delivery 

Cllr Geraint Thomas / Alyn 
Owen / Chris Long  / Paul 
Lewis 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Made up of 3 key questions the re-focused self-evaluation process 
supports Chief Officers and service teams to reflect on what they achieved and identify and 
set priorities for improvement.  The Committee will receive the service’s response to the 
second key question which is linked to Service Delivery.  They will be required to scrutinise 
the proforma outlining the findings of the process (along with relevant supporting 
evidence); and review the validity of the judgment ascribed.   
 

Homelessness Strategy Cllr Geraint Thomas / Alyn 
Owen/ Suzanne Lewis-
Abbott  

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Following approval of the Council’s Homelessness Strategy by Full 
Council on 17th December 2018, the Committee has requested a report be brought back to 
identify what impact had been noted as a result of the strategy being rolled out.  The 
Committee expects any relevant performance data to be included in the report; along with 
any details of issues/barriers experienced and how these have been overcome. 
 

Work Programme Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Committee will review the items due to be presented at the 
next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are 
available to report authors who will be drafting the report. 
 

13th January 
2020 

Continued Development of 
the Town Centre and the 
Night-time Economy 

Cllr Geraint Thomas / Alyn 
Owen / Chris Long / Paul 
Lewis 

Scrutiny and Challenge: -  Following an report received by Members in August 2019; the 
Committee requires a further report to be presented  outlining the developments linked to 
the development of the Town Centre; and the Night-time Economy.  The report should 
contain status updates in relation to the ‘next steps’ identified when the topic was 
previously brought to scrutiny: 

 The status of the Merthyr After Dark strategy and the practical implications of delivering 
this on communities; 

 The status and membership of the Evening Economy Board; and the Board’s key 
priorities; and 

 What specifically the Council’s Regeneration and Public Protection Teams will be 
contributing to delivery of the strategy 

Town Centre Master Plan 
 
 
 

Cllr Geraint Thomas / Alyn 
Owen / Chris Long / Paul 
Lewis 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - Members have requested a report be brought before the 
Committee to outline the key elements of the latest iteration of the Town Centre Master 
Plan.  Updates on key activities such as the Building Enhancement Scheme; developments 
linked to transport infrastructure should be included in the report. 

P
age 25



Regeneration and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

 

 
 

Date / Timing Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet Member  Scrutiny Focus  

13th January 
2020 

Work Programme Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Committee will review the items due to be presented at the 
next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are 
available to report authors who will be drafting the report. 
 

3rd March 2020 

Self-Evaluation Findings: 
Question 3: Leadership and 
Management 

Cllr Geraint Thomas / Alyn 
Owen / Chris Long  / Paul 
Lewis 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Made up of 3 key questions the re-focused self-evaluation process 
supports Chief Officers and service teams to reflect on what they achieved and identify and 
set priorities for improvement.  The Committee will receive the service’s response to the 
last of the key questions which is linked to Leadership and Management.  They will be 
required to scrutinise the proforma outlining the findings of the process (along with 
relevant supporting evidence); and review the validity of the judgment ascribed.   
 

Violent Crime: Sexual 
Violence 

To be confirmed Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Committee has requested a report on this topic which would 
include both local and national data on sexual violence.  The report should outline the 
impact of sexual violence on citizens (i.e.) STIs; pregnancies; impact on mental health and 
offer basic detail on the support structure available for victims both at the time incidents 
occur and in the longer-term. 

Work Programme Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Committee will review the items due to be presented at the 
next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are 
available to report authors who will be drafting the report. 
 

27th April 2020 
 
 
 
 

Third sector funding and 
support 

To be confirmed Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Committee acknowledged Governance committee are 
undertaking a piece of work around this issue.  However, Members of the Regeneration and 
Public Protection Committee Members wish to review and discuss the contribution third 
sector organisations make to the activities which are brought before them on a regular 
basis.  Discussions will focus on how funding cuts experienced over time have impacted on 
working arrangements; the level of services and activities being delivered generally and, in 
particular, how third sector funding and support has been impacted in relation to 
regeneration, cultural and public protection activities.  

Merthyr Tydfil Leisure Trust To be confirmed Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Committee seek an update on the activities being delivered by 
Merthyr Tydfil Leisure Trust with a specific focus on how these activities compliment or 
impact upon the services delivered by MTCBC. 

P
age 26



Regeneration and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

 

 

 
Additional Topics for Review 

 

To be discussed Hoover Master Plan 
 
 

Public awareness around the proposed development of the Hoover site is growing and people are keen to find 
out more about what is being discussed, what impact any development would have on the people living in the 
areas around the Hoover site as well as to find out what role the Council will play in this.   

To be discussed Merthyr Tydfil’s Hidden 
History 

During a number of scrutiny sessions during 2018-19; Merthyr Tydfil’s Hidden History had been identified as an 
possible area of interest by the Committee Chair.  

 

Date / Timing Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet Member  Scrutiny Focus  

27th April 2020 

Work Programme Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Committee will review the items due to be presented at the 
next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are 
available to report authors who will be drafting the report. 
 

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 CCTV - Future Provision
	Appendix 1

	4 Anti-Social Behaviour
	5 Work Programme 2019-2020
	Appendix 1


